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Strategic Report

The Company
Delonex Energy Limited {“Deionex” or the “Company”) was established in May 2013, as an oil and gas company incorporated in
the United Kingdom.

The Company is primarily engaged in exploration and exploitation of oil and gas resources in sub-Saharan Africa. The Company’s
focus has been gn acquiring interests in hydrocarbon licenses through a combpination of licensing rounds, direct awards from
host-governments and farm-ins, and subsequent drilling of exploration & appraisal wells.

Delonex is owned by a group of investors led by certain funds managed by Warburg Pincus LLC, Bharti Global Limited and the
International Finance Corporation (together referred to as “investors”).

Delonex operates through its management companies in the United Kingdom, India and Kenya. The Board of Directors of
Delonex approves all material investment decisions, with such decisions being ratified by its investors,

Delonex is committed to the highest standards of environmental, social and corporate governance and, in particular, minimising
the impact of our operations on the environment. Qur policy is to werk closely with local governments so that hydrocarbons
development can be a catalyst for socio-economic progress.

Business review

During the year, the Group continued its exploration efforts in Chad, Kenya and Ethiopia and also evaluated inorganic
opportunities.

In Chad, the Group exercised its right to a two-year extension to the renewal period till June 2022 and continued its exploration
programme in Block H. Delonex successfully completed phase 1 of the drilling programme with the completion of 6 wells in
June 2019. Of these & wells, 2 were drilled in this financial year. The second phase of exploration commenced with the 3D seismic
data acquisition to define the next stage of exploration drilling; 2,331 Sg.Km data was acquired and the programme was
completed in October 2019 . Drilling planning & preparation work for Phase 2 drilling was subsequently started, but the
programme has been put on hold following the Covid-19 pandemic.

In Kenya, having completed the minimum work programme in Block12A, Delonex did not see sufficient technical and
commercial prospectivity 1o proceed to the Second Additional Exploration Period and has relinquished ticense upon expiry of
the first additional exploration pericd on 1 lune 2020. In Ethiopia, Delonex had relinguished Blocks 18, 19 & 21 in 2017 and
closure activities are ongoing.

During the year, the previously announced purchase of 50% ownership interest in Petrobras Oil and Gas B.Y {“POGBV”), by 2
consortium including Delonex, did not complete prior to the agreed longstop date. Delonex decided to not participate in the
new consortium angd withdrew from the transaction. Certain expense incurred prior to withdrawal were reimbursed to the
Group as a result.

The combination of the coronavirus pandemic and record low oil prices has had material negative impact on Delonex. Force
Majeure notice was issued to the Government of Chad {GoC) on April 8, 2020 and acknowledged by GoC on April 28, 2020, Due
to the uncertainties imposed by the pandemic on the timing of Phase 2 drilling, the Group will re-assess its plans post response
from the GoC. Consequently, in April 2020 the Group decided to restructure its business by announcing redundancies of
employees across the entities to reduce costs to enable the business to weather the downturn, protect its assets and provide
optionality for future activities. Despite the uncertainty, the Directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to
continue to operate for the foreseeable future. See Directors’ Report for further details.

Employees
The Group had 61 employees as at 31st March 2020, as compared to 59 in the previous year.

HSE and working environment

Delonex activities during the year had minimal impact on the external environment with no cil and gas operation emissions
reported. There was one Lost Time Injury recorded in Chad, relating to a fractured leg in workshop area and there were no
security or community incidents. From March 2020, the Covid-19 pandemic resulted in travel restrictions and leading to an
evacuation of expatriates from Chad. The Group always seeks to empioy the highest standards for Health & Safety, Environment,
Social and Security (HSESS). Management policies and framework on HSESS are in practice in line with IFC Performance
Standards
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Future developments
In 2020-21, the Group will complete the restructuring of its business to reduce cost, continue to protect its existing licenses and
remain fully compliant during the current period of uncertainty.

Principal risks and uncertainties

Delonex’s assets are early-stage exploration and appraisal assets which do not presently generate cash flow and which have
considerable risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to natural disasters, hydrocarbon velumes in place, access to
capital, availability of technology and professional resources, access to infrastructure and markets, commedity prices, regicnal
geo-politics, fiscal stability and health and safety of the Group’s operations . Further, the prevailing extraordinary volatile macro
and commodity price conditions, including emerging impacts of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, create a material uncertainty
regarding the monetisation of Delonex assets and the continuation of the Group as a going concern. For financial risks, please
refer to note 22 of the financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

Mark Crawley — Director
18 August 2020
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Directors Report
The Directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020,

Directors

The Directors who served on the Board during the period are shown bhelow:
Peter Kagan {Resigned on 23 June 202Q)

Somit Varma (Resigned on 23rd June 2020}

Rahul Dhir {Resigned on 23 June 2020}

Steve Bell (Resignhed on 23 June 2020)

Peder Bratt

Saleem Karimjee (Resigned on 18" October 2019)
Shravin Mittal

James Kleckner (Resigned on 23 June 2020)
Namrata Thapar {Appointed on 18% Qctober 2019)
Mark Crawley (Appointed on 015t August 2020)

Anupam Sharma is the Group General Counsel as well as the Company Secretary and an Authorized Signatory of the Company.

Dividends
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Future Developments
Please refer to the Future Developments section of the Strategic Report.

Financial Instruments
Please refar to note 22 of the financial statements.

Events since the balance sheet date

In April 2020, the Group decided to restructure its business to reduce costs to enable the business to weather the downturn,
protect its assets and provide optionality for future activities. Please refer to note 36 of the Group financial statements for
further details.

Going concern
The Directors are satisfied that the Group has adequate resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future.

To enable the Directors tc assess the appropriate basis of preparation, the Group prepared a cash flow forecast which
considered reduced costs in the future following the implementation of an organizational restructuring between April and June
2020 and material cost reductions on the basis that no further drilling activity will be performed in the next 12 months. In the
farecast, the Group assumed that its underlying operations will be limited to compliance and regulatory activities. With this, the
Group has financial resources with sufficient headroom on the basis of the cash in hand and guaranteed cash recoveries of
amounts due to the Group to meet its committed obligations over the next 12 months. Accordingly, the Directars continue to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial staternents.

However, the Directors recognise the inherent uncertainty in the Group’s future cutlook given the prevailing extraordinary
volatile macro and commodity price conditions, including emerging impacts of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, and that the
possibility of unexpected downside outcomes remains which create a material uncertainty on the funding of the exploration
program in Chad and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

As far as each person who was a Director at the date of approving this repaort is aware, there is no relevant audit information,
being information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing their report, of which the auditor is unaware. Having
made enquiries of fellow Directors and the Group's auditor, each Director has taken all the steps that he is obliged to take as a
Director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that
information.

For and on behalf of the Board

A

Mark Crawley — r
18" August 2020
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Directors Report and the financial statements in accordance with the applicable
law and regulations.

Company Law requires the Directors to prepare the financial statements for each financial year. Under that law, the Directors
have elected to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union. Under company law the Directors must not approve the Group financial statements unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that pericd. In preparing these financial statements the Directors are required to:

s select suitable accounting policies and then apply them cansistently;

e make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

+  state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

+ prepare the Group financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with Companies Act 2006. They are also responsibte for safeguarding the assets of the
Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DELONEX ENERGY LIMITED

Opinion:

We have audited the financial statements of Delonex Energy Limited (‘the parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for
the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the Group and Parent Statement of Profit or Loss, Group and Parent Statement
of Comprehensive Income, Group and Parent Statement of Financial Position, Group and Parent Statement of Changes in Equity,
and Group and Parent Statement of Cash Flows, Group related notes 1 to 36 and Parent related notes 1 to 25, including a
summary of significant accounting pelicies. The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable taw and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the
parent company financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2020
and of the group’s and parent company’s loss for the year then ended;

. the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with iFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

. the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (I1SAs (UK}) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report beiow. We are independent of the group and parent company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Material uncertainty retated to going concern

We draw attention to Note 2 in the financial statements, which indicates that after implementation of material cost reductions
and organizational restructuring between April and June 2020, the Group has sufficient financial resources on the basis of the
cash on hand to meet its committed obligations over the next 12 months. However, the Group recognises the inherent
uncertainty in the Company’s future outlook given the prevailing extraordinary velatile macro and commaodity price conditions,
including emerging impacts of the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, and that the possibility of unexpected downside outcomes
remains which create a material uncertainty regarding the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

As stated in Note 2, these events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Cur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other infermation

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information.

QOur opinion an the financial statements does not cover the ather infarmatign and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other infarmation, we are required to report that fact.



We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable fegal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its environment cbtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report

to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

*  the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

*  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

*  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 7, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinicn, Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with (SAs (UK} will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council’s website at https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a bady, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this repart, or
far the opinions we have formed.

Staghns Dotlroin

Stephney Dallmann {Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
London

Date: 19 August 2020
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Group statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2020
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Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Impairment charges
Exploration expenses
Operating loss

Other income
Loss before tax and finance cost

Finance Income
Finance cost
Net finance cost

Loss before tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the period

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Notes UsSD (000) usD (‘000)
(11,981) (9,616)

14, 16 {49,517) -
10 (43,618) (15,551)
{105,516) (25,167}

11 38,536 261
(66,530) {24,906)

328 65

(77} {15)

12 251 50
{66,329} (24,855)

13 (a) (56} {147)
(66,385} {25,003)

The nates on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Group statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2020

toss for the period

Other comprehensive income/{loss)

Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss for the period

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Notes UsD ('000) usD (*000)
(66,385) (25,003}

{178) (164)

(178) {164)

(66,563) (25,167

The notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679)

Group statement of financial position

As at 31 March 2020
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Notes USD {'000) USD ('000)
Assets
Non-current assets
Exploration and evaluation assets 14 212,538 241,562
Property, plant and equipment 15 1,482 735
Goodwill 16 1,006 1,580
Other intangible assets 17 544 0
Deferred tax assets 13 {b) 1 20
215,571 243,897
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 18 999 1,127
Prepayments 19 473 877
Cash & cash equivalents 20 15,016 15,491
Liquid investments 21 1,071 674
17,559 18,169
Total assets 233,130 262,066
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital 23 396 254
Share premium 23 341,912 254,428
Advance against equity - 50
Other capital reserve 23 100 41
Retained earnings 25 (184,971} {118,586)
Foreign currency translation reserve (223} (45)
Total equity 157,214 136,142
Non-current liabilities
Liabitity for C Preferred Shares 26 59 62
Other non-current financial liabilities 27 65,559 101,349
Lease liability 28 370 -
Decommissioning provision 29 2,650 2,984
68,638 104,395
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 30 6,643 20,254
Lease liability 28 288 -
Provisions 31 347 1,276
7,278 21,530
Total liahilities 75,916 125,924
Total equity and liabilities 233,130 262,066

The notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements were signed on behalf of the Board by.

7

Mark Crawley = [} 14
18" August, 2020
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679}

Group Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 March 2020

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Notes USD (“000) UsD (‘000)
Cash flow from Operating activities
Loss before tax (66,329} {24,856}
Adjustments
Depreciation 15 333 108
Amortisation 17 3 15
Interest expense on lease 12 60 B
Impairment on exploration and evaluations assets 14 48,943 -
Write off on exploration and evaluation assets 10 40,487 -
Unsuccessful exploration costs 10 1,76% 15,326
Impairment of goodwill 16 574 -
Change of fair value in contingent consideration 27 (35,790) -
Finance income 12 (328} (65}
Other adjustments
Decrease/{Increase) in deferred tax assets 13(b} 13 (4}
{Decrease)/Increase in non-current liability (237) 435
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease in trade and other receivables 180 324
Decrease in prepayments 404 1,168
{Decrease)/Increase in trade and other payables (14,539} 9,556

(24,551} 2,007

Income tax paid {89) {133)
Net cash flows used from operating activities {24,640} 1,874
Investing activities
Expenditure on exploration and evaluation assets 14 (61,869) (61,412)
Purchase of property plant and equipment 15 (420} (500)
Purchase of other intangible assets 17 (548) -
Movement in fixed deposits (397) 3,059
Interest received 309 b6
Net cash flows used in investing activities (62,925) (58,787)
Financing activities
issue of share capital 87,635 39,952
Repayment of lease liabilities 28 (385) -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 87,250 39,952
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (315) (16,961}
Net foreign exchange difference {160) (136)
Cash and cash equivalents at 01 April 2019 15,491 32,588
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2020 20 15,016 15,491

The notes on pages 14 to 38 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679)

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

1.

3.

Corporate information

Delonex Energy Limited (the 'Company'} is a private limited company and is limited by shares. Delonex Energy
Limited is principally a holding company for the Delonex Group, which comprises the Company and all its
subsidiaries (collectively the 'Group’}. The Company is set up by a Group of investors led by Warburg Pincus LLC, a
leading US based private equity firm and is incorporated and domiciled as a limited Company in England and Wales.
The Group’s principal activities are of exploration, exploitation and development of oil and natural gas fields in
sub-Saharan Africa. The Group financial statements of Delonex Energy Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020
were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Directors on 18™ August 2020,

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2020 have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union.

To assess the appropriate basis of preparation, the Group prepared a cash flow forecast which considered reduced
costs in the future following the implementation of an organizational restructuring between April and June 2020
and material cost reductions on the basis that no further drilling activity will be performed in the next 12 months.
In the forecast, the Group assumed that its underlying operations will be limited to compliance and regulatory
activities. With this, the Group has financial resources with sufficient headroom on the basis of the cash in hand
and guaranteed cash recoveries of amounts due to the Group to meet its committed obligations over the next 12
months. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
However, the Directors recognise the inherent uncertainty in the Group’s future outlook given the prevailing
extracrdinary volatile macro and commoadity price conditions, including emerging impacts of the ongoing Covid-19
pandemic, and that the possibility of unexpected downside outcomes remains, and in particular, the timing of the
drilling activities in Chad remain uncertain. These events create a material uncertainty on the funding of the
exploration program in Chad and the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

a} Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for financial
instruments that have been measured at fair value.

b) Presentation and functional currencies
The consolidated financial statements are presented in United States Dollars, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

¢} Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its subsidiaries
as at 31 March 2020. Subsidiaries listed in note 34 are fully consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group, until the date such control ceases. Control exists when an entity has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity to obtain benefit from its activities. All
intra-group balances, income and expenses, unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions have been eliminated in full.

d} Interest in joint arrangements
The Group has interests in joint arrangements where partners have joint control established through
contractual agreement. The Groups interests in these arrangements are accounted for by recognising its
proportionate share in assets and liabilities of these jointly controlled licenses.

Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below
must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time basis at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assat to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

14
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679)

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

€)

d)

b}

Foreigh currency translations
i. Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group at its respective functional
currency spot rates, at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss.
Neon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Group companies

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into USD at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are
translated at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction. The exchange differences
arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Current versus non-current classification
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based en current / non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:
- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in a normal operating cycle
- expected to be reafised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability,
for at least twelve menths after the reporting period.
All ather assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in a normal operating cycle
- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as
non-current assets and liabilities.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Group follows a successful efforts-based accounting policy for oil and gas exploration and evaluation
assets. The success or failure of each exploration effort is assessed for each well.

i. Pre-License Costs

Pre-license costs incurred prior to obtaining the right to explore are expensed immediately in statement
of profit or loss.

ii. License and Property Acquisition Costs

Expenditure incurred on the acquisition of license interests and leasehold properties {including signature
bonus, training and community development etc.} is initially capitalised on a license-by-license basis.
These costs are held, un-depleted, within intangibles assets as exploration and evaluation costs until such
time as the exploration phase on the License area is complete or commercial reserves have been
discovered. Upon recognition of proved reserves, which includes internal approval for development, the
relevant expenditure is transferred to il and Gas properties.

Annual license costs and rentals incurred to explore in the license area are capitalised as part of license
and property acquisition costs.

Acquisition costs which are incurred as part of farm in transactions are also initially capitalised and later
being transferred as Qil and Gas properties, in the manner discussed above.

iii. Exploration and Evaluation Cost

All direct and indirect costs {including general and administrative expenses) incurred in the exploration
phase as part of determining the oil and gas exploration targets are capitalised initially within intangible
assets and subsequently allocated to drilling activity.
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Notes to the Group financial statements
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e)

g

Exploration and Evaluation Cost (continued)

All direct and indirect costs (G&A) relating to exploration, appraisal and drilling are initially capitalised on
a well-by-well basis. Exploratory well costs are written off in the statement of profit or loss on completion
of the well if the outcome is a dry well. Costs directly associated with appraisal activity undertaken to
determine the size, characteristics and commercial potential of a reservoir following the initial discovery
of extractable hydrocarbons, including the cost of appraisal wells where hydrocarbons were not found,
are initially capitalised as an intangible asset.

Foltowing the appraisal of a successful exploration well, if commercial reserves are established and the
project is internally sanctioned by management, the relevant capitalised expenditure is first assessed for
impairment and {if required) impairment losses recognised, then the remaining balances are transferred
to Oil and Gas properties. Where results of expiloration drilling indicate the presence of hydrocarbons
which are ultimately not considered commercially viable, all related costs are written off to the
statement of profit or loss.

Interest in Joint Arrangements

Joint arrangements are those that convey joint control which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. Investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor.

Some of the Group’s activities are conducted through joint operations, whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have the rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating
to the arrangement. The Group reports its interests in joint operations using proportionate consolidation
- the Group’s share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the joint operation are combined
with the eguivalent items in the consolidated financial statements on a line-by-line basis.

Farm-in and farm-out transactions

A farm-in / farm-out agreement is recognised when risks and rewards of ownership are transferred,
which usually take place when necessary formal approvals are given by the partners and respective
Governments.

For transactions involving assets in the exploration and evaiuation phase, the group has adopted an
accounting policy permitted by IFRS 6 such that the Group does not record any expenditure incurred by
the farmee on behalf of the Group. The Group also does not recognise any gain or loss on its farm-out
arrangements but re-designates any cost previously capitalised as in relatich to the whole interest, to
the partial interest retained. Net proceeds from any disposal or farm-out of an intangible exploration
asset are recorded as reduction in total carrying value of intangible exploration assets; excess {if any)
being accounted as gain on disposal.

For a farm-in transaction, the Group recognises its expenditure under the arrangement in respect of its
own interest and for carried interests, where the Group is carrying any other partner for their share of
expenditure in the exploration stage, the Group accounts for such partner share also in its books of
accounts as and when costs are incurred.

Decommissioning

The Group’s activities give rise to dismantling, decommissioning and remediation activities. Provision is
made for the estimated cost of abandonment and site restoration and is capitalised in the relevant asset
category. Decommissioning obligations are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditures required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. Subsequent
to the initial measurement, the obligation is adjusted at the end of each period to reflect the passage of
time and changes in the estimated future cash flows underlying the obligation. The increase in the
prevision due to the passage of time is recognised as finance costs whereas changes in the estimated
timing of decommissioning or decommissioning cost estimates, or discount rate are recognised
prospectively by recording an adjustment to the decommissioning obligation, and a corresponding
adjustment to the corresponding exploration and evaluation asset. Actual costs incurred upon
settiement of the decommissioning obligations are charged against the provision to the extent the
provision was established.
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h)

i

k)

m)

n)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and
equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects, if the recognition criteria are met.
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount
of the plant and equipment as a replacement, if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss, as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated as a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
Leasehold improvements are amortised over the shorter of their useful life or the remaining term of the
lease. The remaining term of the lease for amortization purposes can be extended into additional lease
renewal periods if the renewal is reasonably assured.

Estimated useful life of assets

Computer equipment 36 Months
Furniture and fixtures 120 Months
Office equipment 60 Months

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost, carried net of accumulated amortisation, and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination
is accounted at fair value at the date of acquisition (refer to “section u”). Intangible assets for the Group,
comprises of computer software, which are amartised over 36 months.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, nermally being the transaction price.

The financial assets of the Group include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalent. These
are categorised as loans and receivables. These assets are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequentiy measured at amortised cost less an allowance for uncollectable amounts.

Financial fiabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Financial liabilities for the Group include trade and
other payables and provisions which are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables, including receivables from related parties, are initially recognised at fair
value and subseguently measured at amortised cost less an allowance for uncollectable amounts.
Collectability and impairment are assessed on a regular basis.

Cash and cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances, cash in hand and short-term deposits with original
maturity of less than three months.

Liquid investments
Liquid investments include short-term deposits with banks with original maturity of more than 3 months
and less than 12 months.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently also measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. All transactions are recognised on their
transaction date.
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

o}

p)

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Group expects some or ali of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss, net of any
reimbursement. A contingent liability is disclosed where the existence of an obligation will only be
confirmed by future events or where the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably, except
where the contingent liability results as part of a business combination. The Group does not have any
material contingent liabilities as of the reporting date.

Leases
Accounting policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement

Group as a lessee

Finance leases that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the feased
item to the Group, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The Group does not have any
finance leases during the reporting period. Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating
expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-iine basis over the lease term.

Accounting policy applicable from 1 April 2019

The Group assesses at contract inception all arrangements to determine whether it is or cantains a lease.
That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange
for consideration. The Group is not a lessor in any transactions, it is only a lessee.

Right-of-use assets

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any costs to dismantle
and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease
commencement date (ret of any incentives received). The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on
a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. Annually, the Group also assesses the right-of-use asset
for impairment when such indicators exist.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payrments unpaid at that date, discounted using Group’sincremental borrowing rate because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is generally not determinable. Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), variable
payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee
and payments arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised. Subsequent to initial
measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. The liahility is
remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in future payments.
When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use
asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e. leases which
are for periods of less than one year and do not contain a purchase optien. It also applies the |ease of
low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of low-value items which have no material impact on
the Group's Financial Statements, Payments associated with the short-term leases and leases of low value
assets will continue to be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

q} Share-based payments
Employees (including senior executives and directors) and certain consultants of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees and consultants render services
as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is determined by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date when the grant is made, using an appropriate valuation model. The
cost of equity-settled transactions with consultants is determined by the fair value of the services
received or receivable by the Group, at the date when the consultants render the services reduced by
the cash consideration payable to them. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the performance and / or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense or professional expenses for consultancy services. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired, the capital drawn down and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit or loss for
the period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense or professional expenses under the
administrative expense category.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
for which vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition. These are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and / or service conditions are satisfied.

r}  Pension and other post-employment benefits
The Group contracts out to recognised personal pension schemes which are defined contribution pension
schemes and are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the same period in which the services have
been rendered by the employees.

s) Taxation
Current income tax
Current income tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using tax rates {and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, in the country in which the
Group operates.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
Temporary differences arise particularly in connection with the tax losses carried forward. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all unutilised tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available in future against which the unutilised tax losses can be offset.

t) Impairment of assets
Exploration and evaluation assets
Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for indicators of impairment in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy under IFRS 6. Exploration and evaluation assets are only assessed for
impairment where the facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed
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u)

v)

Exploration and evaluation assets {continued)

its recoverable amount. Indications that the carrying amount of the asset may exceed its recoverable
amount include:

* Substantive expenditure an further exploration and evaluation activities on the asset or group of
assets is neither budgeted nor planned;

» The entity has decided to discontinue activities on the asset or group of assets as a result of failing
to find commercially viable quantities of hydrocarbons; and

s The entity has sufficient data indicating that the carrying amount of the asset or group of assets is
unlikely to be recovered in full from successful development or by sale.

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other
assets or groups of assets {the “cash-generating unit” or “CGU”); management has assessed its CGUs at
the level of block(s). The impairment loss for a CGU is recognised to the extent carrying amount exceeds
the recoverable amount, which is the higher of an asset's or CGU's fair value (less costs of disposal) and
value in use.

Property, plant and equipment & other intangible assets

Property, plant, eguipment and other intangible assets are reviewed at each year end. If there is
indication based on recoverable amount, impairment is considered in the books of account.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
preportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred and included in administrative expenses. Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an
equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is a financial instrument and is measured at fair value with
the changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
over the Group's net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets
acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has
correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures
used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results
in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then
the gain is recognised in profit & loss. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
cambination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liahilities of the
acquiree are assigned to those units.

Changes in accounting policies and new IFRS standards and interpretation

Changes in accounting policies

New and amended standards and interpretations
The Group applied IFRS 16 for the first time in the year ended 31 March 2020. The nature and effect of
the changes as a result of the adoption of IFRS 16 is described below:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ provides a new model for lessee accounting in which all leases, other than short-term
leases and leases of low value, will be accounted for by the recognition on the balance sheet of a right-
to-use asset and a lease lizbility. The subsequent amortisation of the right-to-use asset and the interest
expense related to the lease liability will be recognised in profit or loss over the lease term. IFRS 16
veplaces IAS 17 "Leases’ and IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease’.
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Impact on Delonex Energy

The Group adopted IFRS 16 from the first annual reporting period after its applicability i.e. from 1 April
2019 using the modified retrospective method of adopticn, and consequently comparative information
is not restated. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
initially applying the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The Group has elected not to
recognise assets and liabilities relating to short-term leases i.e. leases which are either for periods of less
than one year or have less than one year remaining and with no aption to extend on the date of adoption,
as well as for low-value items which have no material impact on the Group’s Financial Statements.
Payments associated with the short-term leases and leases of low-value assets will continue to he
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis. Cash flow arising from contracts that are considered
to be finance leases are recognised as financing cash flows.

New IFRS standards and interpretation

There were new standards and interpretations, with an effective date in current financial year (after 1
April 2019) which were applicable for the first time. Other than the ones noted below and lease policy
after recent amendments in IFRS 16, the accounting policies adepted are consistent with those of the
previous year.

The IASB and IFRIC have issued the following standards and interpretations, with an effective date after
the date of these financial statements, March 31, 2020 which are relevant to the Group and may have
impact on the Group now or in the future, as described below:

(1AS / IFRS) International Accounting Standards Effective date
IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1lJan 2020
IAS1 & IAS 8 Presentation of Financial Statements and 1Jan 2020

Accounting Policies, Changes in accounting
estimates and errors

IFRS 3 Business Combinations- Definition of a Business

IASB issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3 Business Combinations to help entities
determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business or not. They clarify the minimum
reguirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing elements, add guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is
substantive, narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test. New illustrative examples were provided along with the amendments. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

IAS 1 & IAS 8: Presentation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies, Changes in accounting
estimates and errors- Definition of Material

IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 to align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and
to clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, ‘Information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.” The amendments to the definition of
material is not expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

4. Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments
Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the date at which B Shares are granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms
and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the
valuation model. The determination of the fair value of equity-settled transaction with employees is discussed in

note 24,
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A Preferred shares and interest thereon

The A preferred shares of the Parent have full voting, dividend and capital distribution rights but they do not confer
any rights on redemption. On analysis under 1AS 32 {Financial instruments}, they fulfil the criteria of equity i.e. {})
no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset and (ii} they will be settled in equity. Thus A
preferred shares will be recognised as equity and measured at the value of cash consideration. Further, the A
preferred shares are also entitled to specified interest, compounded quarterly as per the relevant provisions of the
Articles of the Company. However, the period of settlement of this liability is not defined and it is within the
Parent’s control to defer payment of accrued interest. Hence, a financial liability and a charge to the statement of
profit or loss is not recognised in the books of accounts for the period ended 31 March 2020.

Cantingent Consideration

The Group completed the acquisition of UHCL in September 2017 and recognised the contingent consideration
payable to United Hydrocarbons International Corporation {“United”) for the bonuses and royalties payable on
production in the Doba basin blocks and Block H. Contingent consideration is fair valued at each reporting date
and any difference in the fair value is recognised in the profit and loss account. The determination of the fair value
as at the reporting date is discussed in note 27.

Future cash flows are estimated based on inputs including oil prices, production volumes and operating costs. The
discount rate used is based on a risk-free rate adjusted for company specific risks, country specific risks.

Impairment

For evaluation and exploration assets, where there are indicators of impairment such as the Group discontinuing
further exploration activities in some of these assets, impairment is recognised for an amount equivalent to the
carrying value of those assets as at the date of relinquishment or surrender or withdrawal. All the assets were
assessed for impairment in accordance with note 3(t).

5. Operating segments
The Group has not yet evolved as a fully operational unit and hence it is not possible to identify different
operaticnal segments within the Group. The Group's current activities encompass exploration and administration
of the Group and hence there is only a single reportable segment covering these activities.

6. Directors’ remuneration
During the year, the remuneration to the highest paid Director is stated below:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

usD {‘'000} UsD ('000)

Salaries 772 745
Sacial security 105 101
Pension 13 13
890 859

Consultancy charges 210 -
1,100 259

There is no further remuneration paid to Directors other than the surms stated above. The Group has not given any
loans or advances to the Directors. A performance bonus for FY 18-19 was paid subsequent to the approval of the
Board granted in FY 19-20. With regards to share based payments, please refer to Note 24 for further details. No
B shares have been issued during the year.

Transactions with key management personnel

Subscription to A preferred shares: During the year ended 31% March 2020, the directors’ paid USD 880K as
subscription to A preferred shares {FY 18-19 — USD 400K).
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Auditor's remuneration

ELONEX

The Group paid the following amounts to the Company's auditors or its associates in respect of the audit of the

financial statements and for other services provided to the Group.

Audit of Group annual accounts
Audit of accounts of subsidiaries
Audit fees

Taxation advisory services
Due diligence services
Professional advisory services
Other services

Non- Audit services fees
Total

Operating loss before tax
The operating loss before tax is stated after charging:

Salary & benefits

Travel

IT & subscription expenses
Professional fees
Opportunity assessment
Short-term lease rentals

Exchange loss
Depreciation
Amortisation

Manpower and overhead costs recharges to Oil and Gas assets

Employee and other benefits

Salary

Social security costs
Pension costs
Other benefits
Total

Employee details

The Group has 61 employees at the end of FY 19-20 (FY 18-19 — 59 employees). The average monthly number of

employees during the year is as follows:

Technical

Non-technical

Exploration expenses

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
USD {'000) UsD (‘000)
149 150
62 74
211 224
8 20
119 -
223 -
87 .
437 20
648 244

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

UsD (‘000) usD (000}
6,031 6,227
689 815
1,694 1,175
3,729 3,190
2,541 1,543
93 334
109 {12)
333 108
3 15
{3.742) (4,204)
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
usD (‘000) UsD {‘000)
5,009 5,389
634 574
222 185
166 78
6,031 6,226

31 March 2020 31 March 2018
No. No.

16 13

52 42

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Unsuccessful exploration costs?
Exploration & Evaluation Assets written off?
Other exploration costs®

Total

UsD (000} UsD ({‘000)
1,765 15,326
40,487 -
1,362 225
43,618 15,551
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11,

12.

13.

1 During the year, the Group charged the unsuccessful exploratary drilling costs in Block H, Chad to the statement
of profit or loss.

2 The Group decided not to continue with the next phase of exploration in Block 12A in Kenya as it is not
commercially viable. Consequently, exploration and evaluation assets of USD 40,487K was written off in the
staternent of profit or loss.

3The expenditure incurred on settlement agreement for return of inventory (USD 1,100K) has been charged to
statement of profit or loss. Further, any administrative expenses incurred during the year on the blocks already

relinquished by the Group were also charged to this year's statement of profit or loss.

Other income

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USD {‘000) usD ('000)

Cther income 713 261
Miscellaneous receipts 2,033 -
Change in fair value of contingent consideration (Note 27) 35,790 -
Total 38,536 261

Notes:

1. Other income represents incentives recognised by Delonex Energy India Private Limited under the Services
Export Incentive Scheme {SEIS) of the Indian Government and Delonex Energy UK Limited for Research &
Development Credit Scheme by United Kingdom's Govwt. {SEIS- USD 3K and R&D- USD 710K) (Fy 18-19 SEIS-
USsD 261K).

2. Miscellaneous receipts represent reimbursement {USD 1,661K) received from Africa Oil regarding cost
incurred in the POGBY transaction which the Group withdrew from during the year and reversal of an accrual
(USD 372K) recognised in trade and other payables last year.

3. The Group, on careful consideration of all the data acquired and after undertaking feasibility studies, decided
not to develop the Doba basin discoveries in Chad. Consequently, the contingent consideration payable to
United Hydrocarbons International Corporation (“United”} for the bonuses and royalties on production in the
Doba basin blocks have ceased to exist. Accordingly, the reduction in the contingent consideration of
UsD 22,585K is recegnised as income in the statement of profit or loss, in line with the Group Policy.

4. Contingent consideration of Block H which has been recognised in the acquisition of UHCL has been fair valued
and the difference in the fair value has been recognised as income {USD 13,205K) in the statement of profit
or loss account. Refer to Note 27 for more details.

Net Finance Cost

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

usD (‘000) UusDp (600}

Interest Income 328 65

Interest on leases (60) -

Bank Charges {17) (15)

Total 251 50
Income tax

The Group calculates the period income tax expense using the tax rate that would be applicable to the expected
total annual earnings. The major components of income tax (expense) in the Group statement of profit or loss are:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Income tax USD {'000) USD (‘coo)
Current iIncome Tax expense
- India (DEIPL)? (586) {146}
- Kenya (DEKL} - {1)
Income tax expense {56) (147)

Uncome tax expense of DEIPL includes movement in deferred tax asset/ {liakility) as noted in '13 (b)’ below.
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a) Tax {expense) / credit in the statement of profit or loss

31 March 2020

ELONEX

ENERGY.

31 March 2019

UsD {*000) UsD ('000)
Less on ordinary activities before income tax {66,329) (24,856)
Tax at standard rate (19%) 12,603 4,723
tffects of:
Tax losses carried forward for which no deferred tax is recognised {9,489) {1,904)
Previous year tax reversal - {1)
Effect of different tax rates in various jurisdictions (3,170) (2,965)
Total tax expense {56) (147)

From 1 April 2020, the standard rate of corporation tax has been reduced to 18%. Delonex Energy Limited and
Delonex Energy UK Limited are within the same taxable jurisdiction. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
only for DEIPL with the details given below in 13 {b). A deferred tax asset has not been recognised in DEUKL and

DEL due to the uncertainty of future profits being available to offset the losses carried forward.

The Group has tax losses of USD 94,968K that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable

profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

b} Deferred tax Assets / (Liabilities) Net

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

usD ('000) USD {'000)
Tax effect on difference between tax written down value and net
book value 1 0
Provision for gratuity - 20
1 20
Deferred tax assets represent tax assets of Delonex Energy India Private Limited.
14. Exploration and evaluation assets
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
uso {000} UsD (‘000C)
Net Carrying Amount, beginning of the year 241,562 195,335
Intangible exploration expenditures during the year 62,175 61,553
Impairment on Exploration and evaluations assets (48,943) -
Exploration and evaluation assets written off {Note 10} (40,487} -
Exploration expenses (Note 10} (1,769} (15,326)
Net Carrying Amount, end of the year 212,538 241,562

During the vear, the Group continued its exploration efforts in Blocks H, DOC, DOD & LARGEAU |1l - USD 62,132K and
Block 12A - USD 43K,

Exploration cost written off: The Group decided not to continue with the next phase of exploration in Block 12A (USD
40,487K) and hence the cumulative expenditure incurred on the block was written off,

Exploration expenses: Further in Chad, the unsuccessful exploratory drilling costs of two wells (USD 1,765K) were
charged to the statement of profit or loss in line with the Group Policy.

Impairment: The impairment charge in the current year relates entirely to the Doba assets (USD 48,493K), which the
Group decided not to develop them as they are not commercially viable. In respect of Block H, the carrying value was
compared with the recoverable amounts, determined from fair value less cost of disposal methodology. The fair value
was determined considering recent transactions in Africa involving exploration & appraisal assets, where the
enterprise value was in the $1 - $3.5 per bbl range. Accordingly, based on comparable transactions and the stage of
exploration & appraisal of Block H, fair value of Block H was determined which was higher than the carrying amount.
Hence no impairment charge is being recognised.
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679}

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

16. Goodwill

17.

Goodwill
Total

EQNEX

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
UsD (‘000) UsD (‘000)
1,006 1,580

1,006 1,580

The goodwill arcse on the acquisition of United Hydrocarbons Chad Ltd ("UHCL”) on 22nd September 2017. UHCL
holds a 100% interest in the production sharing contract comprising Blocks — H, DOC, DOD and LARGEAU Iil. The
goodwill was allocated te Block H (USD 1,006K) and Doba (USD 574K) respectively, being the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored. The goodwill from the business combination is reviewed for impairment prospectively at
each reporting date, or earlier if there are indications of impairment.

DOBA: As the Group decided not to develop the Doba basin discoveries as they are not commercially viable, it was
concluded that the recoverable amount of Doba basin is NIL. Hence impairment of goodwitl (USD 574K} was

recognised.

BLOCK H: The recoverable amounts of Block H were determined through fair value less cost to seli method and
was tested for impairment and as the headroom between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount,
including goodwill is positive, no impairment has been recognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets

Cost or valuation

As at 31 March 2018
Foreign currency translation
As at 31 March 2019
Additions

Fereign currency transiation
As at 31 March 2020

Depreciation and impairment

As at 31 March 2018

Amortisation during the year

Foreign currency translation adjustment
As at 31 March 2019

Amortisation during the year

Foreign currency translation adjustment
As at 31 March 2020

Net book value
As at 31 March 2019
As at 31 March 2020

Capital Workin Computer
Progress Software Total
Amount Amount Amount
usD {‘000) uUsD {"000) uUsD {'000)
- 121 121
- (6} (6}
- 115 115
14 534 548
- {6} (6}
14 643 657
- 103 103
- 16 16
- (4) (4)
- 115 115
- 3 3
- {4) {4)
- 113 113
14 530 544

Depreciation on Ethiopia intangible assets amounting to USD 0.3K has been shown under other exploration cost
and accordingly amortisation charge for the year is reflected as USD 3K in the statement of profit or loss.
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679) rptvta ol
Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

18. Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are classified as follows:

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

UsD (‘000) uso {‘000)
Taxes recoverable 957 303
Accrued interest 39 16
Accrued incentives (RDEC) - 98
Receivables in joint operations 3 185
Other receivable - 525
Total 999 1,127

Notes:
1. Taxes recoverable represent direct taxes recoverable USD 176K (P.Y. USD 6K) & indirect taxes recoverable
USD 781K (P.¥. USD 297K}
2. Trade and other receivables are generally settled on a short time frame and the Group’s other financial
assets are due from counterparties without material credit risk concerns, conseguently no allewance of
expected credit loss has been recognised during the year.

19, Prepayments

31 March 2020 31March 2019

UsD (‘0o0) UsD ('000)

Security deposit 191 201
Prepaid expenses 241 635
Advance payment to vendors - 16
Advance to employees 41 25
Total 473 877

20. Cash & cash equivalents
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

UsD (‘000} UsD {‘000)
Cash at bank and in hand o 15,016 15,491
Total 15,016 15,491

21. Liquid investments
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

UsD {000} USD (‘000}
Bank term deposit 1,071 674
Total 1,071 674

Bank term deposit represents deposits with remaining maturity of more than 3 and less than 12 months.
22. Financial instruments

a) Financial management
Exploration for oil and gas involves a high degree of risk and the Group is subject to general risk factors
pertaining to this business, such as

(i} valatility of oil and gas prices,

(i) uncertainty pertaining to estimated oil and gas reserves,
(iii) operational risk related to oil and gas exploration

(iv) access to infrastructure and markets and

(v) regional and fiscal stability.

Meoreover, only a small proportion of sites that are explored are ultimately developed into production.

Further, the Group is exposed to certain types of financial risks. The business activities of the Group
involve exposure to credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk.
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Delonex Energy Limited {Registered No: 08516679)

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

b)

c}

d)

e)

f)

g)

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amount of the financial instruments indicated below are approximately equal te the fair
value since these instruments have a short term to maturity.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
g:::::f Fair value :‘::::f Fair value
uso (‘000) USD (‘000) uUsD (‘000) USD ('000)
Assets:
Trade and other receivables 959 999 1,127 1,127
Cash and cash equivalents 15,016 15,016 15,491 15,491
Liquid investments 1,071 1,071 674 674
17,086 17,086 17,292 17,292
Liabilities:
Non-current liability for C
Preferred Shares 59 59 62 62
Trade and other payables 6,643 6,643 20,254 20,254
Lease liabilities 658 658 - -
Provision - - 1,276 1,276
7,360 7,360 21,592 21,592
Credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if the counterparties to financial instruments fail
to perform as contracted. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying value
of financial assets as disclosed in note 22{b)} above. The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy
third parties. The sums due as trade and other receivables are in relation to VAT receivables, advances
to suppliers given in oil and gas operations and there are no indications that any of the counterparties
will not be able to fulfil their liabilities. Cash and cash equivalents are receivables from banks, and the
credit risk is assessed to be immaterial. The Group has used the simplified approach as allowed under
IFRS 9 to assess the quantum of expected credit losses on the financial assets.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk at year ended 31 March 2020 is only in relation to bank deposits
and any movement in the interest rate will not have a material impact on the Group's cash flow.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of being unable to pay financial liabilities as they fall due. With the exception of
the financial liability for the C Preferred shares and lease liability (USD 370K}, all other financial liabilities
are due within one year. There is uncertainty in the Group’s future outlook given the prevailing
extraordinary volatile macro and commeodity price conditions, including emerging impacts of the ongoing
Covid 19 pandemic.

Foreign currency risk

The Parent's functional currency and funding to the Group is in USD. The Group is exposed to currency
risk related to its activities because part of the Group expenses are in currencies other than USD and the
Group has not entered into any agreements to reduce its exposure. However, the foreign currency risk
will have minimal impact on the group as most of its transactions are denominated in USD.

Capital management

The Group’s objective is to maintain a capital structure such that it has appropriate levels of funding to
ensure that the Group can meet its cash flow requirements and can support its trading activity. The
Group will seek further investments from its investor Group to fund ongeing activity.
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ELONEX

Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679) ENERG Y.
Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

{c) Other Capital reserve

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

QOpening halance 41 41
Addition during the year 59 0
Closing balance 100 41

Note: Other capital reserve represent cancellation of A & B shares as at 31 March 20. Refer note 23 {a) & 24 for
cancellation of A & B shares during the year

24. Share based payments
The Group has issued Ordinary B Shares {‘B Shares’) in the Parent {Delonex Energy Limited) to certain employees
{including senior executives and directors) and consultants to incentivise them for their employment or
consultancy services. B Shares are fully paid up shares of face value of USD 0.00001 each, issued at par.

B shares have been issued to both UK and non-UK employees of the Group. In respect of the UK employees,
B shares have been issued together with redeemable Preferred C Shares {'C Shares’} in the Parent Campany,
pursuant to HMRC's guidelines on Employee Shareholder Exemption (‘ESE’). Each C Share has a fixed value of GBP
2,500 redeemable at the option of the C shareholder at any time prior to an Initial Public Offering {IPO} or a change
of control of the Group. 19 C shares have been issued to the end of this period and in Company accounts, the
liahility is disclosed as a capital contribution from the Parent under equity. Shares have been sub-divided into 4
USD 5, USD 10 and USD 15 respectively. Each category of B Shares will only participate in the equity value of the
Group to the extent the share price (equity value) exceeds the respective strike price. The number of B Shares held
by a B shareholder that will ultimately be entitled to participate in the equity value of the Group, as specified above,
will be based on specific time value and dollar value conditions. In the case of an IPO, B shares will be converted
into common shares in the Parent prior to the IPO based on their entitlement to any pre-IPO value of the Group.

B Shares have been accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transaction in the Group financial
statements. In the DEUKL Company accounts, these are disclosed as an expense in the statement of profit or loss
and as a capital contribution from the Parent under Equity.

The foltowing table illustrates the number and respective threshold values {strike prices) of, each category of B
Shares issued to UK employees during the year:

Shares Strike
Class of Shares outstanding at Issued during Cancelled during outstanding at Price {in
Shares the start of the year the year the year the end of the usD)
year

Bl 5,560,843 - 73,532 5,487,311 0

B2 2,511,628 - 115,379 2,396,249 5

B3 2,791,494 - 128,993 2,662,501 10

B4 4,187,243 - 193,496 3,993,747 15

Total 15,051,208 - 511,400 14,539,808

The cost of equity-settied transaction with employees (B shares issued to employees) has been measured by
reference to the fair value of B shares at the date of grant.

Although there were no transactions during the year, the cost of equity-settled transaction with consultants (B
Shares issued to consultants) are normally measured by reference to the fair value of services received or
receivable by the Group, as reduced by cash consideration payable to them. The fair value of services are measured
at the date such services are rendered by the consultants by reference to the contracted price.

25. Retained earnings
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USsD {'000) UsD {"000)
Balance as at the beginning of the period (118,586) (93,583}
Total loss for the period (66,385) {25,003)
Balance as at the end of the period (184,971) (118,586)
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Pelonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679) ‘ EINERG Y

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

26. Liability for C preferred shares
In the case of redeemable preference C shares, where a UK employee exercises his right to a put option for GBP
2,500, a financial Liability arises which will be cash settled. Thus, a financial liability has been recognised
accordingly. The Parent Company has to date issued 19 C redeemable preference shares at a redemption value of
GBP 2,500 —~ which has beer agreed to by HMRC. This is deemed to be the fair value {Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy) and is equivalent to USD 59K at the year-end exchange rate.

27. Other non-current financial liabilities

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

usD {"000) usD (‘00a)
Other non-current financial liabilities 65,559 101,349
Total 65,559 101,349

The Group completed the acquisition of UHCL in September 2017 and recognised the contingent consideration
payable to United Hydrocarbons International Corporation {“United”) for the bonuses and royalties payable on
production in the Doba basin blocks and Block H. The fair value of the contingent consideration is determined using
an estimate of discounted future cash flows and is considered a level 3 valuation under the fair value hierarchy.
The discounted future cash flows are determined based on a fong-term oil price assumption of USD 55/bbl. The
Group, on careful consideration of all the data acquired and after undertaking feasibility studies, decided not to
develop the Doba basin discoveries in Chad. Consequently, the contingent consideration payable to United for the
bonuses and royalties on production in the Doba basin blocks have ceased to exist and have been reversed in the
current period. Further, contingent consideration of Block H has been fair valued and has been recognised at USD
65,559K.

28. Leases
This note provides information for leases where the group is a lessee.

i. Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
The balance sheet shows the following amounts relating to teases:

Right-of-use assets (Net Book Value)

Armount (USD 000}
As at 01 Aprif2019 R

Office lease (Cost)

1,008
Office iease (Accumulated Depreciation) (271)
Forex adjustments (39)
Net Value as at 31 March 2020 (Note 15) 698

Lease Labilities
As at 01 April 2019

Amount {USD ‘000

Additions 1,008
Forex adjustments (36)
Interest on leases! 71
Repayment (385)
As at 31March 2020 658
Office Lease-Non-Current 370
Office Lease-Current 288

0utstanding lease liability as at end of 31 March 2020 will be paid within 5 years from the date of

financial statements.

2 Interest on leases in relation to Chad office iease has been capitalised as part of the exploration and

evaluation assets (USD 11K)
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Delonex Energy Limited {Registered No: 08516679)

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit cor loss
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases

Description Amaount {USD ‘000}

Depreciation - Office lease - Right-of-use assets {net of forex adjustments) 266

Interest on leases 60

Expense related to short term leases {included in administrative expenses) 93
Notes:

1. Discount rate used in calculation is 7.19%
2. Practical Expedients; [n applying IFRS 16 for the first time the Group has applied the below
practical expedients:
a) short-term lease practical expedient by not recognising lease liabilities in respect to lease
arrangements with a remaining lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 April 2019.
b} the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

The group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The group has leased various offices at different locations. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of time but may have extension options as described below.

Extension and termination options: Extension and termination options are included in several property
and equipment leases across the group. These are used to maximise operatienal flexibility in terms of
managing the assets used in the group’s operations. Most of the extension and termination options held
are exercisable only by the group and not by the respective lesser.

tease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than the security deposits in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period to produce a constant pericdic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

» the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

» any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received

» any initial direct costs, and

* restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term
on a straight-line basis. |f the group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase eption, the right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of office is recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in statement of profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Treatment of Leases on transition:

The adoption of this new standard has resulted in the Group recognising a right-of-use asset and related
lease liability in connection with all former operating leases except for those identified as low-value or
having a remaining lease term of less than one year from the date of initial recognition. Payments
associated with the short-term leases and leases of low-value assets will continue to be recognised as an
expense,

The Group has applied modified retrospective approach permitted by the standard in which the lease
asset is measured based on the lease liability with no adjustment to opening retained earnings.
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 38516679)

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

v. Reconciliation between lease commitments against lease liabilities recognised

ELONEX

ENERGY.

The following table provides a reconciliation of the operating lease commitment as at 31 March 2019 to
the total lease liability recognised on the group balance sheet in accordance with IFRS 16 as at 1 April

2020 with the explanation below:

Description Amount (USD ‘000}
Operating Lease Commitment as at 31 March 2019 980
Lease payments relating to renewal period not included in operating lease

commitment as at 31 March 2019 147
Effect of discounting (119)
Total lease liability as at 1 April 2019 1,008

29. Decommissioning provision
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

usD {(‘000) UsD (‘000)
Opening balance 2,984 2,544
Additions during the year 377 440
Payments during the year {364)
Transfer to current provision (347) -
Closing Balance 2,650 2,984

Note: The provision relates to decommissioning of wells in Chad; closing balance are for Doba basin wells and

provision for Block H wells are moved to the current category.

30. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are classified as follows:
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

UsD ('000) Uso (‘00e)
Accounts payable 5,706 17,895
Statutory dues 272 834
Payable in loint Operations 665 1,524
Total 6,643 20,253

Statutory dues include the social security cost and withholding taxes to be deposited to the respective government.

31. Provisions
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

UsD {‘000) usD {‘000)
Provisions for bonus - 1,178
Provision for decommissioning liahility (Refer note 29) 347 -
Provision for environmental restoration - 98
Total 347 1,276

Management has decided not to provide for Bonus for FY 19-20. Performance honus for FY 18-19 was paid

subsequent to the aporoval of the Board granted in FY 19-20.

32. Capital commitments and contingencies

(i) Capital commitments 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

uso ('000) USD (‘000)
Block- H, DOC, DOD & LARGEAU 1Nl 5,000 5,000
Total 5,000 5,000

The Group exercised its right for extension to the Exclusive Exploration Authorisation (EEA) renewal period for a
further 2 years till June 2022 and shall carry out a further minimum work obligation of USD 5,000K during the
extension period. Considering impact of Covid-19, Force Majeure notice was issued te Government of Chad {GaC})
on April 9, 2020 and acknowledged by GoC on April 28, 2020.
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MNotes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

33,

34.

(i} Contingencies 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USD {“000) uUsD (‘000}

Development Commitments - 35,000
Community investment 5,000 5,000
Total 5,000 40,000

Blocks - H, DOC, DOD & LARGEAU : Based an the feasibility studies undertaken, the Group decided not te develop
DOC & DOD discoveries as it is not commercially viable and there shall be no further commitment of USD 35,000K
for development in Doba as per the share purchase agreement signed with United. The Group has given an
indication that over the life of the programme, it anticipates it will invest up to USD 5,000K inte community
investment programmes. During the extension period, the Group shall also assess community requirements and
based on the findings shall put in place further community investment pregramme.

Interest in Oil & Gas Blocks

The Group has following interest in oil and gas blocks.

Country Block Phase Operator Mar'20 Mar'19
Chad Blocks - H, DOC, DOD & LARGEAUIN | Exploration Operator 100% 100%
Kenya Block 12A Exploration QOperator 100% 60%

Effective 1st June 2019, Tullow has exited from Kenya Block 12A leaving Delonex as sole participant.
Delonex has decided not to continue in Block 12-A post its expiration period, 315 May 2020.

Subsidiaries companies exempt from audit by virtue of section 479A

The following subsidiaries companies of Delonex Energy Limited are exempt from audit of individual accounts for
the financial year. Delonex Energy Limited (Parent undertaking} will also issue Parent Company Guarantee per
section 479C of Companies act, 2006.

Subsidiaries under direct control Subsidiaries under indirect control
Delonex Energy Holdings Limited Delonex Energy Ethiopia Limited
Delonex Kenya Holdings (One} Limited Delonex Kenya (One) Limited
Delonex Ethiopia Holdings {Two) Limited DEE (Rift Exploration) Limited
Delonex Chad Holdings {One) Limited Delonex Chad {One) Limited

Delonex Mozambigue Holdings (one) Limited
Delonex Nigeria Holdings {One) Limited
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679)

Notes to the Group financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

f

gl

Compensation of key management personnel {see note &)

IAS 24 defines key management personnel as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including any director {(whether executive
or otherwise) of that entity. The key management compensation is listed in the following table:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USD (‘000) UsD {'000)

Salaries 772 745
Social security 105 101
Pension 13 13
890 859

Consultancy charges 210 -
1,100 859

Note:; No cutstanding balance as at 31 March 2020 to directors’, except for consultancy charges of USD 35K.

The ultimate Parent

Delonex Energy Limited is the ultimate Parent entity of the Group.

36. Events after the reporting period

The combination of the coranavirus pandemic and record low oil prices has had material negative impact on
Delonex. In April 2020, Directors decided to restructure its business to reduce costs to enable the business to
weather the downturn, protect its assets and provide optionality for future activities. The restructuring has a
significant impact in the way the business will operate in the short-term. The Group performed several actions to
communicate the restructuring process to the employees and have assessed which operational, consultancy and
administrative contracts needed to be renewed or terminated.

In Chad, Force Majeure notice was issued to the Government of Chad {GoC) on April 9, 2020 and acknowledged by
GoC on April 28, 2020. Due to the uncertainties imposed by the pandemic on the timing of Phase 2 drilling, the
Group will re-assess its plans post response from the GoC. Conseguently, in April 2020 the Group decided to
restructure its business by announcing redundancies of employees across the entities to reduce costs to enable
the business to weather the downturn, protect its assets and provide optionality for future activities. In Kenya,
having completed the minimum work program, Delonex did not see sufficient technical and commercial
prospectivity to proceed to the Second Additional Exploration Period and has initiated relinquishment of the license
upon expiry of the first additional exploration period on 1st June 2020.
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Delonex Energy Limited {Registered No: 08516679)

DELONEX ENERGY LIMITED

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 March 2020
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Delonex Energy Limited {Registered No: 08516679)

Company statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 March 2020

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Cost of sales
Gross Loss

Administrative expenses
Loss on impairment of investments
Operating Loss

Finance income
Loss before tax

{ncome tax expense

Loss for the period

Notes usD ('000) UsD (‘000)
5 (9,732) {9,708)
(9,732) (9,708)

{671} (361}

10 (40,490} {819)
{50,893} {10,888)

11 258 -
(50,635) (10,888}

12 - -
(50,635} (10,888)

The notes on pages 44 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Company statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 March 2020

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the period

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

USD (‘000) UsD {"000)
{50,635) {10,838)
(50,635} (10,888}

The notes on pages 44 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Delonex Energy Limited {Registered No: 08516679)

Company statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2020

ELONE,

ENERGY.

Assets
Non-current assets
lnvestments

Current assets
Trade and other receivables
Cash & cash eqguivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Share capital

Share premium
Advance against equity

Other capital reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Liability for C Preferred Shares

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Total liabifities

Total equity and liabilities

31 March 2020 321 March 2019

Notes uUsD (‘000) usD (‘000)
i3 173,257 132,445
173,257 132,445

14 140 3,558
15 13,814 13,965
13,954 17,523

187,211 149,968

17 396 254
17 341,912 254,428
- 50

13 100 a1
20 {155,660} {105,025)
186,748 149,748

21 59 62
59 62

22 404 158
404 158

463 220

187,211 149,963

The notes on pages 44 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements was signed on behalf of the Board by.

M

Mark Crawley — Difector
18th August 2020
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ELONE,

Delonex Energy Limited {Registered No: 08516679} ENERG vX

Company statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2020

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Notes USD (“000) UsD ('000)
Cash flow from Operating activities
Loss before tax (50,635) {10,889)
Adjustments
Amortisation of intangible asset - 6
Interest income 11 (258} -
Loss on impairment of investments 10 40,490 819
Working capltal adjustments:
Decreasef{lncrease) in trade, other receivables and prepayments 3,418 (3.467)
Increase/{Decrease) in trade and other payables 246 (816)
Decrease in non-current liability {3) (5)
Net cash flows used from operating activities (6,742) {14,352)
Investing activities
Investments in subsidiary companies 13 (81,302) {43,041)
interest income received 11 258 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities {81,044) {43,041)
Financing activities
Issue of share capital 87,576 39,952
Advance against equity 59 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 87,635 39,952
Decrease in ¢ash and cash equivalents {151) (17,441}
Cash and cash equivalents at 01 April 2019 13,965 31,406
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2020 15 13,814 13,965

The notes oh pages 44 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679)

-

Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

1

Caorporate information

Delonex Energy Limited (the 'Company') is principally a holding Company for the Delonex Group, which comprises
the Company and all of its subsidiaries {collectively the 'Group'}). The Company is set up by a Group of investors led
by Warburg Pincus LLC, a leading US based private equity firm and is incorporated and domiciled as a limited
Company in England and Wales. The Company’s principal activities is of exploration, exploitation and development
of oil and natural gas fields in sub-saharan Africa. The Group financial statements of Jelonex Energy Limited for
the period ended 31 March 2020 were authorised for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Directors
on 18" August 2020.

Basis of preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2020 have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union. The
separate financial statements have been prapared on a historical cost convention except for financial instruments
that have been measured at fair value.

To assess the appropriate basis of preparation, the Company prepared a cash flow forecast which considered
reduced costs in the future following the implementation of an organizational restructuring between April and june
2020 and material cost reductions on the basis that no further drilling activity will be performed in the next 12
months. In the foracast, the Company assumed that its underlying operations will be limited to compliance and
regulatory activities. With this, the Company has financial resources with sufficient headroom on the basis of the
cash In hand and guaranteed cash recoveries of amounts due to the Company to meet its committed obligations
over the hext 12 months. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the geing concern basis in preparing the
financial statements. However, the Directors recognise the inherent uncertainty in the Company’s future outlook
given the prevailing extraordinary volatile macro and commeodity price conditions, including emerging impacts of
the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, and that the possibility of unexpected downside outcomes remains which create
a material uncertainty on the funding of the explioration program in Chad and the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

Summary of significant accounting policies
a) Investment in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Investments in
subsidiaries, are stated at cost and reviewed for impairment if there are indications that the carrying
value may not be recoverable,

b} Rewvenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to
be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below
must also be met before revenue is recognised.
Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.
Interest
Interest income is accrued on a time basis at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

¢} Foreign currency translations
The Company’'s separate financial statements are presented in USD, which is also the Company’s
functional currency.
Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at its respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-rmanetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
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Delonex Energy Limited {(Registered No: 08516679)

Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

d)

e)

f)

g

h}

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in statement of financial position based on current / non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is:

- expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in a normal operating cycle

- expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability,

for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
- It is expected to be settled in a normal operating cycle
- It is due to be seftled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified
as non-current assets and liabilities, respectively.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried net of accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets for the Company
comprises only computer software costs, which is amortised on a straight-line method over a perted of
36 menths.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, normally being the transaction price.

The financial assets of the Company inciude trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalent.
These are categorised as loans and receivables. These assets are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less an allowance for uncollectable amounts.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Financial liabilities for the Group include trade and
other payables and provisions which are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables, including receivables from related parties, are initially recognised at fair
value and subseguently measured at amortised cost less an allowance for uncollectable amounts.
Collectability and impairment are assessed on a regular basis.

Cash and cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise at bank balances, cash in hand and short term deposits with original
maturity of less than three months.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. All transactions are recognised on their
transaction date.
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679}

ey

Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

i

k)

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recoghised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement. A contingent liability is disclosed where the existence of an obligation will only be
confirmed by future events or where the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably except where
the contingent liability results as part of a business combination. The Company does not have any
material contingent liability as of the reporting date.

Leases

Accounting policy applicable prior to 1 April 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement

Company as a lessee

Finance leases that transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased
item to the Company, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the fair value of the leased
property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The Company does not have
any finance leases during the reporting period. Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating
expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Accounting policy applicable from 1 April 2019

The Company assesses at contract inception all arrangements to determine whether it is or contains a
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. The Company is nol d lessor in any transactions, it is only a lessee.

Right-of-use assets

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to
dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the
lease commencement date {net of any incentives received). The Company degreciates the right-of-use
assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful
life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use
asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using Group's incremental borrowing rate because the interest
rate implicit in the lease is generally not determinable. Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based
on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments
arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability
will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any
reassessment or maodification, or if there are changes in substance fixed payments. When the lease
liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and
loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced te zero.
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Delonex Energy Limited (Registered No: 08516679}

Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

m)

n)

o)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases i.e. leases
which are for periods of less than one year and do not contain a purchase option. it also applies the lease
of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of low-value items which have no material impact
on the Company’s Financial Statements. Payments associated with the short-term leases and feases of
low-value assets will continue to be recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis.

Company doesn’t have any Right of use assets as at year end.

Pension and other post-employment benefits

Employees (including senior executives and directors) and certain consultants of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees and consultants render services
as consideration for equity instruments {equity-settled transactions).

Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is determined by reference to the fair value of
the equity instruments at the date when the grant is made, using an appropriate valuation madel. The
cost of equity-settled transactions with consultants is determined by the fair value of the services
received or receivable by the Group, at the date when the consultants render the services reduced by
the cash consideration payable to them. That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase
in equity, over the period in which the performance and / or service conditions are fulfilled in employee
benefits expense or professional expenses for consultancy services. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired, the capital drawn down and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit or loss for
the period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense or professional expenses under the
administrative expense category.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
for which vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition. These are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and / or service conditions are satisfied.

Pension and other post-employment benefits
The Company do not have any employees as at 31st March 2020.

Taxation

Current income tax

Current income tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered} using tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, in the country in which the
Company operates.

Deferred income tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability methed, on temporary differences arising between the tax
base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
Tempaorary differences arise particularly in connection with the tax losses carried forward. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all unutilised tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available in future against which the unutilised tax losses can be offset.

Changes in accounting policies and new IFRS standards and interpretation

New IFRS standards and interpretation

There were new standards and interpretations, with an effective date in current financial year (after 1
April 2019) which were applicable for the first time. Other than the accounting policy on leases, the
accounting policies adopted are consistent with thase of the previous year.
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New IFRS standards and interpretation (continued)

The IASB and IFRIC have issued the following standards and interpretations, with an effective date after
the date of these financial statements, March 31, 2020 which are relevant to the Group and may have
impact on the Group now or in the future, as described below:

{IAS / IFRS) International Accounting Standards (Effective date)
IFRS 3 Business Combinations 1Jan 2020
1AS1 & 1AS 8 Presentation of Financial S$tatements and 1 Jan 2020

Accounting Policies, Changes in accounting
estimates and errors

IFRS 3 Business Combinations- Definition of a Business

IASB issued amendments to the definition of a business in IFRS 3 Business Combinations to help entities
determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets is a business or not. They clarify the minimum
reguirements for a business, remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
replacing any missing elements, add guidance to help entities assess whether an acquired process is
substantive, narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs, and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test. New illustrative examples were provided zlong with the amendments. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events that occur on or after the date of first
application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

1AS 1 & |AS 8: Presentation of Financial Statements and Accounting Policies, Changes in accounting
estimates and errors- Definition of Material

IASB issued amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 to align the definition of ‘material’ across the standards and
to clarify certain aspects of the definition. The new definition states that, ‘Information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonahly be expected te influence decisicns that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which
provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.”

The amendments to the definition of material is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s conseclidated financial statements.

4  Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgments
A Preferred shares and interest thereon
The A preferred shares of the Company have full voting, dividend and capital distribution rights but they do not
confer any rights on redemption. On analysis under 1AS 32 {Financial instruments), they fulfil the criteria of equity
i.e. {i) no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset and {ii) they will be settled in equity. Thus,
A preferred shares will be reccgnised as equity and measured at the value of cash consideration.
Further, the A preferred shares are also entitled to specified interest, compounded quarterly as per the relevant
provisions of the Articles of the Company. However, the period of settlement of this liability is not defined and it
is within the parent’s control to defer payment of accrued interest. Hence financial liability and charge to the
statement of profit or loss is not recognised in the books of accounts for the year ended 31 March 2020,
Loss on Impairment-Investments
During the year company tested its investments in subsidiaries for impairment, Consequently, except for the
investment in Delonex Energy Holdings Limited and Delonex Ethiopia Holdings {Two) Limited for impairment as the
net asset of these subsidiaries has eroded in comparison to the carrying value of the investment, no other entity
has any impairment indicators as at 31 March 2020.

S  Cost of sales
The Company has entered into service agreement with its subsidiaries whereby the Company is entitled to receive
various services such as consultancy and planning services including strategic and operational management
services, evaluation of business development opportunities and services of producing financial information and
providing advice and assistance on financial issues.
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USD (‘'000) usD {'000)
Consultancy Fees - Indian entity 1,273 1,583
Consultancy Fees - UK entity 8,675 8,710
Consultancy Fees - Kenya entity 224 206
Annual overhead recovery {240) (791)
Total 9,732 9,708
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6

10

11

12

Director's remuneration
No remuneration has been paid to the Directors for the services rendered for the Company.

Employee benefits
The Company does not have any employees.

Auditor’'s remuneration
Please refer to note 7 of Group financial statements.

Operating loss before tax

FLONEX

The operating loss before tax is stated after charging: 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

usD {‘000) UsD {‘000)
Legal & professional fees 383 68
Meeting expenses 28 43
Travelling expenses 101 93
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss 3 (7}

Loss on Impairment - Investments

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

UsD {000} UsSD {*000})

Loss on Impairment 40,490 219
40,490 819

The Company regularly reviews Investments in subsidiaries for impairment indicators. The Company has decided
to relinquish its interest in exploration Block 12A at the expiry of the exploration period in May 2020. The Provision
for impairment USD 40,320K relates to a reduction in value of the investment in step down subsidiaries engaged
in the oil and gas business as the company has withdrawn from the blocks based on commercial decisions. The
Company has also tested its investment in Delonex Energy Holdings Limited and Delonex Ethiopia Holdings {Twa)
Limited for impairment as the net asset of these subsidiaries has eroded in comparison to the carrying value of the
investment. The Company has taken an impairment of USD 155K in Delonex Energy Holdings Limited and USD 15K

in Delonex Ethiopia Holdings (Two) Limited.

Finance income
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

USD (‘000)

USD {'000)

Interest on fixed deposits 258

258

Income tax
Analysis of tax expense

No liability to Delonex Energy Limited arose on corporation tax on ordinary activities for the year.

Factors affecting the tax expense

Factors affecting the tax expense is explained below:
31 March 2020

31 March 2019

USsD (‘000}) USsD {000}
Loss on ordinary activities before income tax {50,635} {10,889)
Loss on ordinary activities
Multiplied by the standard rate of UK corporation tax at 19% {9,620} (2,069)
Effects of:
Tax losses carried forward 9,620 2,068

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised due to the uncertainty of future profits being available to offset the

losses carried ferward. The Company has tax losses of USD 62,013K as at 31 March 2019.
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Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020

14 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables may broadly be classified as follows:
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

uUsD (‘000) UsD ('000)
Amount owed by subsidiaries 115 3,540
Taxes recoverable 19 2
Prepaid expenses 3] 16
Total 140 3,558

Trade and other receivables are generally settled on a short time frame and the Group’s other financial assets are
due from counterparties without material credit risk concerns, consequently no allowance of expected credit loss
has been recognised during the year.

15 Cash & cash equivalents

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

usD {'000) usD {‘000}
Cash at bank and in hand 13,814 13,965
Total 13,814 13,965

16 Financial instruments

a) Financial management
Explcration for oil and gas involves a high degree of risk and the Company is subject to the general risk
factors pertaining to this business, such as

(i) volatility of oil and gas prices,

{ii) uncertainty pertaining to estimated oil and gas reserves,
{iii) operational risk related to oil and gas explaration

{iv) access to infrastructure and markets and

(v) regional and fiscal stability.

Maoreover, only a small proportion of sites that are explored are ultimately developed into production.

Further, the Company is exposed to certain types of financial risks. The business activities of the Company
involve exposure to credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk.

b) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amaunt of the financial instruments indicated below are approximately equal to the fair
value since these instruments have a shart term to maturity.

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount Value amount value
UsD {‘0c0} USD ('000) USD (‘000)  USD (‘000)
Assets:
Trade and other receivables 140 140 3,558 3,558
Cash at bank and in hand 13,814 13,814 13,965 13,965
13,954 13,954 17,523 17,523
Liahilities:
Non-current liability for C Preferred 59 59 62 62
Shares
Trade and other payables 404 404 158 158
463 463 220 220
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c)

d)

e)

f)

g}

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognised if the counterparties to financial instruments fail
to perform as contracted. The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying value
of financial assets as disclosed in note 17 (b} above. The Company trades only with recognised,
creditworthy third parties and with Delonex Group. The sums due as trade and other receivables are in
relation to VAT receivables and — receivable from Delonex Group and there are no expectations that any
of the counterparties will net be able to fulfil their liabilities. Cash and cash equivalents are receivables
from banks, and the credit risk is assessed to be immaterial.

Interest rate risk

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk at year ended 31 March 2020 is only in relation to bank
deposits and any movement in the interest rate will not have a material impact on the Company’s cash
flow.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk of being unable to pay financial liabilities as they fall due. With the exception of
the financial liability for the C Preferred shares, all other financial liabilities are due within one year. There
is uncertainty in the Company’s future outlook given the prevailing extraordinary volatile macro and
commeodity price conditiens, including emerging impacts of the ongoing Covid 19 pandemic.

Foreign currency risk

The Parent's functional currency and funding to the Company is in USD. The Company is exposed to
currency risk related to its activities because part of the Company expenses are in currencies other than
USD and the Company has not entered into any agreements to reduce its exposure. However the foreign
currency risk will have minimal impact.

Capital management

The Company’s objective is to maintain a capital structure such that it has appropriate levels of funding
to ensure that the Company can meet its cash flow requirements and can support its trading activity. The
Company will seek further investments from its investor Group to fund ongoing activity.
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for the year ended 31 March 2020

18

19

20

Other capital reserves
Please refer to note 23 (c) of the notes to the Group financial statements

Share based payments

The Group has issued Ordinary B Shares {‘B Shares’) in the Parent (Delonex Energy Limited) to certain employees
{including senior executives and directors) and consultants to incentivise them for their employment or
consultancy services. B Shares are fully paid up shares of face value of USD 0.00001 each, issued at par.

B shares have been issued to both UK and non-UK employees of the Group. In respect of the UK employees, B
shares have been issued together with redeemable Preferred C Shares (‘C Shares’) in the Parent Company,
pursuant to HMRC's guidelines on Employee Shareholder Exemption {'ESE’}. Each € Share has a fixed value of GBP
2,500 redeemable at the option of the C shareholder at any time prior to an Initial Public Offering (IPQ) or a change
of control of the Group. Shares have been sub-divided into 4 categories as B1, B2, B3 and B4 Shares each with a
specific thresheld value {strike price) as USD O (Founder Share), USD 5, USD 10 and USD 15 respectively. Each
category of B Shares will anly participate in the equity value of the Group to the extent the share price (equity
value) exceeds the respective strike price. The number of B Shares held by a B shareholder that will ultimately be
entitled to participate in the equity value of the Group, as specified above, will be based on specific time value and
dollar value conditions. In the case of an IPO, B shares will be converted inte common shares in Parent prior ta the

IPO based on their entitlement to any pre-1PO value of the Group.

B Shares have been accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transaction in the Group financial
statements. In the DEUKL Company accounts these are disclosed as an expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss
and as a capital contribution from the Parent under Equity.

The following table illustrates the number and respective threshold values (strike prices) of, each category of B
Shares issued to UK employees during the year:

Class of Shares outstanding Issued during Cancelled Shares outstanding S.trike:
Shares at the start of the the year during the year at the end of the Price {in
yaar year usn)
Bl 5,560,843 - 73,532 5,487,311 0
B2 2,511,628 - 115,379 2,396,249 5
B3 2,791,494 - 128,993 2,662,501 10
B4 4,187,243 - 193,496 3,993,747 15
Total 15,051,208 - 511,400 14,539,808

The cost of equity-settled transaction with employees (B shares issued to employees) has been measured by
reference to the fair value of B shares at the date of grant.

Although there are no transactions during the year, the cost of equity-settled transaction with consuitants (8
Shares issued to consultants) is usually measured by reference to the fair value of services received or receivabie

by the Company from the consultants measured at the date; such services are rendered by the consultants.

Retained earnings

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

UsD {(‘000) UsD (‘000)
Balance as at the beginning of the period {105,025) {94,136}
Total loss for the period (50,635) (10,889)
Balance as at the end of the period {155,660) {105,025)
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21 Liability for C preferred shares
In case of redeemable preference C shares, where an UK employee exercises their right to a put option for
GBP 2,500, a financial Liability arises which will be cash settled. Thus, a financial liability has been recognised
accordingly (Delonex has to date issued 19 € redeemable preference shares at a redemption value of GBP 2,500
each— which has been agreed to by HMRC). This is deemed to be the fair value and is equivalent to USD 59K at the
year-end exchange rate,

22  Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables may breadly be classified as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

USD {"000) UsD {‘000)

Trade payable
- Amount owed to subsidiary 239 -
- Payable to others 165 158
Total 404 158

23 (Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2020, the Company does not have any material capital commitments.

24 Related party disclosures
Please refer to note 35 of the notes to the Group financial statements for the amount of that have been entered
into with related parties for the relevant financial year. Below table provides the outstanding balance as at
315t March 2020 with related parties.

{In USD 000}

Particulars Delanex Dealonex Delonex Delonex Delonex United
Energy UK Energy India Energy Kenya Kenya One Chad {One) Hydrocarbon
Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Ltd. Ltd. Ltd. Chad Ltd.
T h
rad.e and other i i 10 } i 105
receivables
T r
rade and othe 233 6 i ) ) i
payables

25 Events after the reporting period
Please refer to note 36 to the Group financial statements
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